SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 21, 2013
10: 02 a. m

10: 02: 50 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Meyer called the Senate Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 10:02 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Senator Pete Kelly, Co-Chair

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair

Senat or Anna Fai rcl ough, Vice-Chair
Senator Cick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny O son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Senator Cathy Gessel; Vern Jones, Chief Procurenent
O ficer, Departnent of Adm nistration.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Johanna Bal es, Deputy Director, Tax Division, Departnment of
Revenue; Dave Genn, Self, Palner; M ke Koskovitch, Self,
Vasi | | a.

SUMVARY

SB 7 CORPORATE | NCOVE TAX

SB 7 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

SB 12 PUBLI C PROCUREMENT



SB 12 was HEARD and HELD in conmittee for further
consi derati on.

Co- Chair Meyer apologized for the delay in starting the
meeting and explained that he had been in a neeting with
Senat or Lisa Murkowski .

#sb7
SENATE BILL NO 7

"An Act relating to the conputation of the tax on the
taxabl e incone of a corporation derived from sources
within the state.”

10: 04: 09 AM

SENATOR CATHY G ESSEL, introduced SB 7 and stated that the
| egi slation adjusted the corporate incone tax in Alaska to
align with the consuner price index. She related that the
last time the corporate tax brackets were set was in 1981.
She discussed a research docunent in nenbers' packets that
contained a chart, which laid out the current inconme tax
brackets and what the bill would alter them to. Currently,
the ten tax brackets nmoved up in increnents of $10,000
each. The brackets began at $10,000 of taxable income for a
corporation, which was for a C corporation. The highest tax
bracket, which had a 9.4 percent tax, was reached at
$90, 000 of incone. The adjustment for inflation would make
t he highest tax bracket achieved at $222,000. She shared
that the bill nmade an adjustnment for inflation and would
create a significant benefit for Alaska's small and nedi um
si zed businesses; these businesses included C corporations
in a variety of industries. She discussed the fiscal note
attached to the bill.

Co-Chair Meyer inquired if there were nine tax brackets.
Senator G essel responded that there were ten tax brackets.
Co-Chair Meyer queried how the current tax brackets were
arrived at. Senator G essel responded that in 1981, the tax
brackets were adjusted and that in the supporting docunents
there was a docunent from Legislative Research Services
(copy on file); the third page of the document contained
the current tax brackets. She related that the top chart
represented the current brackets and that the bottom chart
reflected what the brackets would look like if the bill
passed. She noted that nearly 14,000 of the state's

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 2 02/21/13 10: 02 A M



corporations were mmeking less than $10,000 in taxable
incone and would fall into the lowest tax bracket. She
poi nted out that the $90,000 taxable income bracket, which
paid 9.4 percent, was paid by around 559 filers. In the
second chart, which showed the proposed tax brackets, the
nunber of filers shifted and nore people appeared in the
| ower to nedium incone brackets. She offered that the bill
would | eave nore noney in the hands of small and nedium
sized business owners and would allow the expansion of
busi nesses, additional hires, etc. She explained that the
adjustnment would not affect the very |large conpanies and
that if the bill passed, $222,000 or nore in incone would
be the highest tax bracket; these filers would continue to
pay the 9.4 percent.

Co-Chair Meyer noted there was an attachnent that showed
the other states and how they did their incone tax; He
noted that the other states seened to vary on how it dealt
with the issue. Senator G essel responded that the docunent
was an interesting summary and that there were a
"plurality” of states that had a 6 percent tax. She
believed that there were four states that had a higher
corporate income tax than Alaska; Mnnesota, |Illinois,
Pennsyl vania, and the District of Colunbia all had a top
bracket that was higher than a 9.4 percent.

10: 09: 53 AM

Co- Chair Meyer observed that Ms. Bales should speak to the
fiscal note and offered that it was concerning when there

was |ess revenue conmng to the state; however, he
acknowl edged that the state mght be spending the sane
anount attenpting to collect a "small anount” from the

smal | busi nesses.

Senator O son queried what the definitions of small and
medi um sized corporations were. Senator G essel replied
that although there was no specific definition, a conpany
that was making $74,000 of taxable incone was not a |arge
busi ness. She related that C corporations could be
transportation and construction conpanies. Senator d son
poi nted out that he knew the difference between a C and an
S corporation. He offered that if there were no specific
definitions for small and nmedium corporations, they were
being defined by corporate inconme. He opined that there
could be a very large corporation that was | osing noney and
woul d be eligible under the bill. Senator G essel replied

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 3 02/ 21/ 13 10: 02 A M



that she was using generic terns such as small and nedi um
si zed businesses. She stated that her district had sone
small | ocal businesses, sone of which were C corporations
and reiterated that the bill affected small, | oca

busi nesses. She added that Senator O son's questions would
be best answered by Ms. Bal es.

Senator Ason inquired if tax credits were covered under
the corporate incone tax. Senator G essel replied that she
believed that they were, but that Ms. Bales could provide
nore specifics about the bill. She explained that although
the bill's fiscal note was estinmated to be $3.8 mllion, it
would likely not be that large as a result of tax credits
that lowered tax liability. She pointed out that the chart
in nmenbers' packets showed the nunber of actual filers in
FY11.

Senator O son inquired what effect the bill would have on
the tax credits. Senator G essel replied that the effect of
tax credits was sonewhat reflected on second chart by
Legislative Research Services, which expected the sane
nunber of filers. She added that the highest bracket would

still "fall into these" and |owest bracket that had | ess
than $25,000 of taxable income would "still be present
al so. "

10: 13: 08 AM

JOHANNA BALES, DEPUTY DI RECTOR, TAX DI VISION, DEPARTMENT OF
REVENUE (via tel econference), addressed an earlier question
by Co-Chair Meyer regarding the bill's fiscal note and
related that the Departnment of Revenue (DOR) had taken a
look at the last few years of corporate inconme tax; DOR
then recalculated the tax Iliability based on the new
brackets, which was where the $3.8 nmillion projection cane
from She related that under the proposed |egislation, the
maxi mum tax savings to any one corporation would be $5, 828
per year. She stated that the |egislation defined small tax
payers as those that averaged about $300,000 or |ess of
t axabl e i ncone per year. She pointed out that the small tax
payers, as defined by the legislation, would benefit the

nmost from the bill because they would have the higher
percentage of tax savings. In response to a question by
Senator O son, she indicated that small and nedi um

corporations were defined in ternms of taxable incone. She
pointed out that there were some large nulti-national
corporations that conducted a limted anount of activity in

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 4 02/ 21/ 13 10: 02 A M



Al aska. She shared that some large multi-national
corporations would benefit by the |egislation; however, the
maxi mum  savi ngs was around  $5, 800 per year. She
acknowl edged that there were a lot of Al askan businesses
that were in the lower tax brackets that would benefit from
the legislation. In response to a question by Senator
O son, She stated that DOR first calculated the tax
[iability, which was based on taxable incone; once the tax
liability was calculated, the credits were then deducted.
She offered that the credits did not have any effect on the
tax structure schene in the bill because the credits were
taken after tax liability was cal cul at ed.

Senator O son requested confirmation that sonme of the |arge
mul ti-national corporations such as oil conpanies that did
business in Alaska wwuld have a benefit from the
| egislation. M. Bales responded in the affirmative and
related that DOR had conducted an analysis to determ ne how
much savings the bill would represent to the oil and gas
industry in total. She continued that historically, there
had been 27 to 30 oil and gas corporations that filed taxes
with DOR and that if all of those corporations received the
maxi mum benefit from bill, the savings to the oil and gas
industry would be $157,000 of +the $3.8 mnillion. She
concluded that the oil and gas industry as a whole would
benefit very slightly fromthe | egislation.

10: 18: 23 AM

Senator O son queried if there were organizations that
woul d have state or federal tax credits jeopardized as a
result of the bill. M. Bal es responded in the negative.

Senator Dunleavy queried if the tax was based on the gross
or net. Ms. Bales responded that the corporate inconme tax
was a net tax and that the tax liability was based on the
net inconme that was earned.

Co- Chair Meyer noted Senator O son's concerns regarding the
net tax and stated that a large corporation could benefit
from the bill; however, he acknow edged the benefit would
be very m ni mal .

Senator A son inquired if there would be a change in the
fiscal note if the brackets were consolidated and reduced
in nunmber. M. Bales responded that there would be sone
changes to the fiscal note, but expected that they would be

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 5 02/21/13 10: 02 A M



m nor; furthernbre, DOR would have to run the calcul ation
based on how the brackets were coll apsed.

Co-Chair Meyer queried how the bill's effective date
affected businesses filing for their taxes. He requested an
explanation of the effective date in the l|egislation. M.
Bales replied that the bill would be effective imedi ately,
but that the legislation was for tax periods that started
after the effective date. She shared by exanple that if the
bill went into effect July 1st, it would not affect a
corporation that filed on a cal endar year until January 1st
of the follow ng year.

Senator O son noted that his corporations had alternating
dates when the <corporate income taxes were filed. He

inquired when the bill would take effect for an entity that
was a fiscal year filer. Ms. Bales related by exanple that
if the bill took effect on July 1st, a fiscal year filer

whose taxable fiscal year started on Septenber 1st would
file on Septenber fist of the sanme year. She added that if
the legislation went into effect on July 1st, a filer whose
fiscal year started April 1st would not be able to take
advant age of the new rates until April 1st of the foll ow ng
year; the timng depended on when the fiscal year started.

10: 22: 57 AM

Co- Chair Meyer CLOSED public TESTI MONY on SB 7.

Co-Chair Meyer stated that he did not know if the brackets
were set correctly for neeting the bill's objective and
inquired if the admnistration had a position on the
legislation. Ms. Bales replied that the adm nistration was
currently neutral on the bill.

Co-Chair Meyer stated that the conmttee would take a day
to think about the bill before bringing it back.

10: 24: 10 AM

SB 7 was HEARD and HELD in committee for further
consi derati on.

Senator G essel stated that there would be nore letters of

support forthcomng in nenbers' packets from chanbers of
commer ce and conpani es across the state.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 6 02/21/13 10: 02 A M



Co-Chair Meyer noted that he did see sone letters of
support from the Juneau Chanber of Commerce and the Al aska
St at e Chanber of Commer ce.

10: 24: 51 AM
AT EASE

10: 25: 09 AM
RECONVENED

#sb12
SENATE BILL NO. 12

"An  Act relating to state and public entity

procurenent, including the State Procurenment Code,
procurement preferences, contract awards, the use of
smal | procurenment provisions for certain anounts of

| eased space, the Al aska business |icense requirenent
for Alaska bidder and other procurenent preferences,
the proof of registration of construction contract
bi dders and of ferors, t he est abl i shnent and
mai nt enance of |ists of persons who want to provide
supplies or services to the state, state agencies, and
state instrunmentalities, el ectronic bi ds and
proposal s, the chief pr ocur enent of ficer, smal
procurenents, and witings; relating to the neaning of
" Al aska bidder'; and providing for an effective date."

10: 25: 38 AM

Vice-Chair Fairclough stated that SB 12 was an attenpt to
nodi fy the procurenent code and streamine the procurenent
processes. She pointed out that currently, there was sone
anbiguity in calculating the procurenent bids. She related
that the bill provided a specific point in tinme when an
Al aska business license was required and increased the
threshold under which state agencies nay use an informal
procurenent process; the threshold was increased from
$50, 000 to $100,000 for good and services and from $100, 000
to $200,000 for construction. The bill also increased the
smal | procurenent | eased-space threshold from $3,000 to
$7,000. She related that the |egislation advanced the state
into an electronic world through which electronic bids and
signatures would be accepted. The bill elimnated an
outdated vendor list and relocated all the preferences into

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 7 02/21/13 10: 02 A M



the sane spot in the Alaska Statutes, as well as clarified
whi ch preferences may be stacked and which one could not be
conbined. The legislation elimnated the "enployers wth
disabilities" preference, reduced the chief procurenent
officer's pay from a range 27 to a range 25; collectively,
the changes streanlined the procurenent process and
provi ded Al askans a way to enter and engage in Al aska state
servi ce. She concluded that the Dbill provi ded nore
opportunities for Al askans, particularly in rural Al aska.

VERN JONES, CH BEF PROCUREMENT  OFFI CER, DEPARTVENT OF
ADM NI STRATI ON, introduced hinmself for the record. He

related that the bill sinplified, nodernized, and clarified
the procurenent process. He pointed out that increasing the
smal | procurenent threshold made it possible to conduct

nore procurenments in a less formal node, which was easier
for smaller businesses, particularly in rural areas. He
stated that the bill wuld particularly help building
owners who were |easing space to the state and that the
legislation sinplified the preferences. Currently, the
D vision of Vocat i onal Rehab was required to get
verification from an individual's doctors to wverify
disability status; the bill would allow for the acceptance
of third party qualifications from entities such as the
Soci al Security Adm ni stration and t he Vet er ans
Adm nistration (VA). He believed the bill was easier to
understand than the current law on the state practitioner
side, as well as for the businesses that were engaging wth
t he state.

10: 30: 31 AM

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough was prepared to present a sectiona
analysis of the bill, but preferred to take questions
afterwards in respect for those who were waiting online to
testify.

DAVE GLENN, SELF, PALMER (via teleconference), testified in
support of the SB 12 and related that the stated Depart nent
of Labor and Wbrkforce Devel opnent (DLWD) did not recognize
disability certification fromthe VAL He related a personal
story about DLWD rejecting a contract that he had submtted
because his paperwork had been subnmitted from the VA He
stated that the DLWD's stance on this issue was
inconsistent wth weverything else the state did for
di sabl ed veterans. He shared that his VA certification was
recognized for discounted license plates, free hunting

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 8 02/21/13 10: 02 A M



licenses, the state park and ferry systens, etc. He added
that DLMWD was the only departnment in the state that did not
recogni ze disability certification fromthe VA. He recalled
serving in the Vietnam War and being an "Agent O ange"
victim He expressed concerned for the troops returning
from duty in Afghanistan and pointed out that he did not
want to see these veterans treated |ike he had been when he
returned home from Vietnam He offered that veterans should
not be discrimnated against over a technicality, but
should be afforded every opportunity to get their lives
back in order. He concluded that the bill elimnated having
to satisfy DLMD s requirenents of a whole system of private
doctors, expenses, etc.

M KE KOSKOVI TCH, SELF, WASILLA (via teleconference), spoke
in support of SB 12 and related his experiences with "Agent
Orange." He believed that a disability certification from
the VA should satisfy any requirenent by the State of
Al aska. He observed that veterans should be treated wth
the dignity and honor that they deserved and should not
have to deal with bureaucratic obstacles.

Co- Chair Meyer CLOSED public TESTI MONY on SB 12.

10: 35: 27 AM

SB 12 was HEARD and HELD in conmmittee for further
consi derati on.

Co- Chair Meyer discussed the follow ng neeting' s agenda.
10: 35: 55 AM

#
ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 10:36 a. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 9 02/21/13 10: 02 A M



